From: Tamburrino, Victoria

To: kschneider@eilllc.com; sgoodman@republicservices.com

Subject: IDEM OAQ Contact Information for Application No. 003-47946-00257 for Republic Services of Indiana LP dba
National Serv-All Landfill

Date: Wednesday, June 19, 2024 2:57:00 PM

Attachments: image001.png

Dear Ms. Goodman and Ms. Schneider,

| am the permit writer assigned to the current application No. 003-47946-00257 for Republic
Services of Indiana LP dba National Serv-All Landfill. 1 would like to extend to you my contact
information so that we may have continued communication until your new permitis issued.
Please keep this information at hand. Itis common for questions to arise, and oftentimes,
further clarification is needed during the permit review process.

IDEM, OAQ will notify you when a draft permit has been submitted for public notice and/or
when a final permit has been issued. As part of the notification, IDEM, OAQ will provide
information on how to access the draft and/or final permit electronically on IDEM's website. If
Republic Services of Indiana LP dba National Serv-All Landfill would prefer to receive paper
copies of the entire draft and/or final permit, please let me know prior to the end of the
applicant review period. If you prefer to receive paper copies of the entire permit, IDEM, OAQ
will mail a paper copy of the draft permit and/or original signed final permit to the source
contact. If you do not request to receive paper copies of the entire permit, IDEM, OAQ will only
mail a paper copy of the original signed final permit signature page to the source contact.

Please feel free to contact me at any time if you have questions, concerns, or important
information regarding your permit. For your convenience, my section chief (Madhurima
Moulik) may be contacted at 317-233-6663 or mmoulik@idem.in.gov.

Thank you in advance for your time and assistance. | look forward to working with you.

Sincerely,

Tori Tamburrino

Victoria “Tori” Tamburrino | She/Her

Environmental Manager, Office of Air Quality, Permits Branch
IN Department of Environmental Management

Phone: (317) 233-0043

Fax: 317-232-6749

Email: vtamburr@idem.in.gov

Help us improve!

DEM values your feedhack
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From: Goodman, Stephanie

To: Tamburrino, Victoria; Kristen Schneider

Subject: RE: IDEM OAQ Contact Information for Application No. 003-47946-00257 for Republic Services of Indiana LP dba
National Serv-All Landfill

Date: Wednesday, June 19, 2024 4:45:11 PM

Attachments: image003.png

**** This is an EXTERNAL email. Exercise caution. DO NOT open attachments or
click links from unknown senders or unexpected email. ****

Email received and thank you for the communication.

Stephanie Goodman
Environmental Manager

National Servall Landfill and United Refuse Landfill, Fort Wayne, IN
Williams County Landfill, Bryan, OH
Celina Landfill, Celina, OH

6231 MacBeth Road

Fort Wayne, IN 46809

e sgoodman@republicservices.com
0 260-442-3239

c 260-450-3043

w RepublicServices.com
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Sustainability in Action

From: Tamburrino, Victoria <VTamburr@idem.IN.gov>

Sent: Wednesday, June 19, 2024 2:57 PM

To: Kristen Schneider <kschneider@eilllc.com>; Goodman, Stephanie
<SGoodman@republicservices.com>

Subject: IDEM OAQ Contact Information for Application No. 003-47946-00257 for Republic Services
of Indiana LP dba National Serv-All Landfill

This Message Is From an External Sender Report Suspicious

This message came from outside your organization.

Dear Ms. Goodman and Ms. Schneider,

| am the permit writer assigned to the current application No. 003-47946-00257 for Republic
Services of Indiana LP dba National Serv-All Landfill. | would like to extend to you my contact
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

DEM values your feedback
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From: Tamburrino, Victoria

To: Goodman, Stephanie; Kristen Schneider

Subject: RE: IDEM OAQ Contact Information for Application No. 003-47946-00257 for Republic Services of Indiana LP dba
National Serv-All Landfill

Date: Thursday, June 20, 2024 7:20:00 AM

Attachments: image002.png

Good morning,

The current permit uses two SIC codes (4953-Refuse Systems, and 4939-Combination Utilities, Not
Elsewhere Classified), but the application only lists 4953. Should we remove 4939?

Thank you,

Tori

From: Goodman, Stephanie <SGoodman@republicservices.com>

Sent: Wednesday, June 19, 2024 4:45 PM

To: Tamburrino, Victoria <VTamburr@idem.IN.gov>; Kristen Schneider <kschneider@eilllc.com>
Subject: RE: IDEM OAQ Contact Information for Application No. 003-47946-00257 for Republic
Services of Indiana LP dba National Serv-All Landfill

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
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From: Kristen Schneider

To: Tamburrino, Victoria; Goodman, Stephanie

Cc: Laura Niemann

Subject: RE: IDEM OAQ Contact Information for Application No. 003-47946-00257 for Republic Services of Indiana LP dba
National Serv-All Landfill

Date: Thursday, June 20, 2024 1:15:55 PM

Attachments: image002.png

**** This is an EXTERNAL email. Exercise caution. DO NOT open attachments or
click links from unknown senders or unexpected email. ****

Hi Tori,

We believe the SIC code 4939 is still needed to support IDEM’s determination that this is a
single source with Toro Energy, as shown below in an excerpt from the latest permit:

A.2 Part 70 Source Definition [326 IAC 2-7-1(22)]

This source consists of three (3) plants:

(a) Plant 1, National Serv-All Landfill (Plant ID: 003-00257) is located at 6231 MacBeth Road, Fort
Wayne, Indiana 46809, a landfill;

(b) Plant 2, United Refuse Landfill (Plant ID: 003-00291) is located at 5000 Smith Road, Fort Wayne,
Indiana 46804, a landfill; and

(c) Plant 3, Toro Energy, LLC’s High Energy BTU Plant (Plant ID: 003-00474) is located at 5400-6398
Yohne Road, Fort Wayne, IN 46809, converting landfill gas into high BTU gas.

Since the three (3) plants are located on contiguous or adjacent properties belong to the same industrial
grouping, and under common control of the same entity, they will be considered one (1) source. Separate
Part 70 permits will be issued to National Serv-All Landfill, United Refuse Landfill, and Toro Energy High
BTU Plant for administrative purposes and to separately address the applicability of all applicable federal
rules.

Maybe as an alternative, you can add the SIC code 4939 to Item (c) in the Toro Energy plant
description above, and then can remove it from the Landfill’s SIC code grouping in Condition
A.1 of the permit.

Archaea is building a new RNG plant on the site. Canyou tell us if they have their own air
operating permit? It would be appropriate to include both codes UNLESS we can specify that
Archaea, who is linked to the site as one source but has their own air operating permit, has a
facility operation that would be classified under 4939.

Kristen Schneider

Environmental Information Logistics
tel: 219-844-4315

e-mail: kschneider@eilllc.com

url: www.eilllc.com

From: Tamburrino, Victoria <VTamburr@idem.IN.gov>
Sent: Thursday, June 20, 2024 6:21 AM
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To: Goodman, Stephanie <SGoodman@republicservices.com>; Kristen Schneider
<kschneider@eilllc.com>

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
Elsewhere Classified), but the application only lists 4953. Should we remove 49397?

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
Celina Land(fill, Celina, OH

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

To: Kristen Schneider; Goodman, Stephanie

Subject: Applicant Review for Part 70 Administrative Amendment No. 003-47946-00257 for Republic Services of Indiana
LP dba National Serv-All Landfill

Date: Wednesday, June 26, 2024 9:49:00 AM

Attachments: 47946let.docx
47946per.docx
image001.png

Importance: High

Dear Ms. Goodman and Ms. Schneider:

Attached please find the draft Part 70 Administrative Amendment and supporting documents for review.
As a courtesy, this draft is being provided to you for an opportunity to review and provide comments prior
to the issuance of the permit approval.

The time clock for Part 70 Administrative Amendment permit No.: 003-47946-00257 will be stopped
during your review until you either provide comments or indicate that you do not have any comments.
Due to permit accountability and IDEM's intention to issue the permit in a timely manner, you are being
allotted one (1) week to provide comments in writing. If you have any conflicts or special circumstances
that would impede your review process during the time allotted, please notify me directly at the email
address or phone number listed below as soon as possible. If you have not responded on or before July
3, 2024, IDEM will assume that you have no comments pertaining to this draft and all files will be
forwarded for issuance.

During this review period, | will be available to address your concerns, answer any questions that you
may have, or make necessary revisions to this draft.

Pursuant to 326 IAC 2-1.1-7, the fee for this permitting action is expected to be $0, which is based on the
following:

| $0 | example: TV/FESOP/SSOA Administrative Amendment

Please note: This is not a bill. This represents the anticipated fee and is subject to change if additional
review is required or the permit level changes for some reason (e.g. an additional NESHAP review is
required). You will receive a final bill from the OAQ Permits Administration and Support Section.

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

DEM wvalues yvour feedback
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Republic Services of Indiana LP dba National Serv-All Landfill	Page 3 of 5

Fort Wayne, Indiana		Administrative Amendment No. 003-47946-00257

Permit Reviewer:  Tori Tamburrino









Ms. Stephanie Goodman

Republic Services of Indiana LP dba National Serv-All Landfill

6231 MacBeth Road

Fort Wayne, IN 46809



Re:	003-47946-00257

Administrative Amendment to 

[bookmark: Text57]Part 70 Operating Permit Renewal

No. T003-44270-00257



Dear Ms. Goodman: 



[bookmark: Text62][bookmark: Text66]Republic Services of Indiana LP dba National Serv-All Landfill was issued a Part 70 Operating Permit Renewal No. T003-44270-00257 on January 24, 2022 for a stationary municipal solid waste landfill located at 6231 MacBeth Road, Fort Wayne, Indiana 46809.  On June 12, 2024, the Office of Air Quality (OAQ) received an application from the source requesting to approve Higher Operating Values (HOVs) for temperature for gas extraction locations C69 and D169.   



Pursuant to 326 IAC 2-7-11(a)(7), this change to the permit is considered an administrative amendment because the permit is amended to change the descriptive information where the revision will not trigger a new applicable requirement or violate a permit term. 



Proposed Changes: 



Pursuant to 326 IAC 2-7-11(a), the permit is hereby administratively amended as follows with the deleted language as strikeouts and new language bolded:



[bookmark: _Toc138065838]E.3.3	Operational Standards for Collection and Control Systems [40 CFR 63.1958] [326 IAC 20-67]

In order to comply with 40 CFR 63.1958, the Permittee shall:



(a)	Operate each interior wellhead in the collection system with a landfill gas temperature less than 62.8°C (145°F), except as indicated below:



		Well ID

		Upper Temperature Limit (C)

		Upper Temperature Limit (F)



		...

		...

		...



		C59R

		65.6

		150



		C69

		71.1

		160



		...

		...

		...



		D169

		71.1

		160







All other conditions of the permit shall remain unchanged and in effect.  



Please find attached the entire Part 70 Operating Permit as amended.  The permit references the below listed attachment(s). Since these attachments have been provided in previously issued approvals for this source, IDEM OAQ has not included a copy of these attachments with this amendment:



Attachment A:  Fugitive Dust Control Plan 

Attachment B:  Reserved

Attachment C:  40 CFR 62, Subpart OOO, Federal Plan Requirements for Municipal Solid Waste Landfills That Commenced Construction On or Before July 17, 2014 and Have Not Been Modified or Reconstructed Since July 17, 2014

Attachment D:  40 CFR 61, Subpart M, National Emission Standards for Asbestos

Attachment E:  40 CFR 63, Subpart AAAA, National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants: Municipal Solid Waste Landfills



Previously issued approvals for this source containing these attachments are available on the Internet at: http://www.in.gov/ai/appfiles/idem-caats/.  



Previously issued approvals for this source are also available via IDEM’s Virtual File Cabinet (VFC).  To access VFC, please go to: https://www.in.gov/idem/ and enter VFC in the search box.  You will then have the option to search for permit documents using a variety of criteria.



Federal rules under Title 40 of United States Code of Federal Regulations may also be found on the U.S. Government Printing Office's Electronic Code of Federal Regulations (eCFR) website, located on the Internet at: http://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/text-idx?tpl=/ecfrbrowse/Title40/40tab_02.tpl.



A copy of the permit is available on the Internet at: http://www.in.gov/ai/appfiles/idem-caats/.  A copy of the application and permit is also available via IDEM’s Virtual File Cabinet (VFC).  To access VFC, please go to: https://www.in.gov/idem/ and enter VFC in the search box.  You will then have the option to search for permit documents using a variety of criteria.  For additional information about air permits and how the public and interested parties can participate, refer to the IDEM Air Permits page on the Internet at: https://www.in.gov/idem/airpermit/public-participation/; and the Citizens' Guide to IDEM on the Internet at: https://www.in.gov/idem/resources/citizens-guide-to-idem/.



This decision is subject to the Indiana Administrative Orders and Procedures Act - IC 4-21.5-3-5.  



If you have any questions regarding this matter, please contact Tori Tamburrino, Indiana Department Environmental Management, Office of Air Quality, Permits Branch, 100 North Senate Avenue, MC 61-53 IGCN 1003, Indianapolis, Indiana 46204-2251, or by telephone at (317) 233-0043 or (800) 451-6027, and ask for Tori Tamburrino or (317) 233-0043.



Sincerely,







Madhurima D. Moulik, Ph.D., Section Chief

Permits Branch

Office of Air Quality



Attachment(s): Updated Permit



cc:	File - Allen County

Allen County Health Department

U.S. EPA, Region 5 

Compliance and Enforcement Branch

		An Equal Opportunity Employer
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Part 70 Operating Permit Renewal

	OFFICE OF AIR QUALITY	


Republic Services of Indiana LP dba National Serv-All Landfill

6231 MacBeth Road 
Fort Wayne, Indiana 46809



(herein known as the Permittee) is hereby authorized to operate subject to the conditions contained herein, the source described in Section A (Source Summary) of this permit.  



The Permittee must comply with all conditions of this permit.  Noncompliance with any provisions of this permit is grounds for enforcement action; permit termination, revocation and reissuance, or modification; or denial of a permit renewal application.  Noncompliance with any provision of this permit, except any provision specifically designated as not federally enforceable, constitutes a violation of the Clean Air Act.  It shall not be a defense for the Permittee in an enforcement action that it would have been necessary to halt or reduce the permitted activity in order to maintain compliance with the conditions of this permit.  An emergency does constitute an affirmative defense in an enforcement action provided the Permittee complies with the applicable requirements set forth in Section B, Emergency Provisions.



This permit is issued in accordance with 326 IAC 2 and 40 CFR Part 70 Appendix A and contains the conditions and provisions specified in 326 IAC 27 as required by 42 U.S.C. 7401, et. seq. (Clean Air Act as amended by the 1990 Clean Air Act Amendments), 40 CFR Part 70.6, IC 1315 and IC 1317.   
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[bookmark: _Toc138065743][bookmark: _Toc169701307]SECTION A	SOURCE SUMMARY

This permit is based on information requested by the Indiana Department of Environmental Management (IDEM), Office of Air Quality (OAQ).  The information describing the source contained in conditions A.1 through A.4 is descriptive information and does not constitute enforceable conditions.  However, the Permittee should be aware that a physical change or a change in the method of operation that may render this descriptive information obsolete or inaccurate may trigger requirements for the Permittee to obtain additional permits or seek modification of this permit pursuant to 326 IAC 2, or change other applicable requirements presented in the permit application.



[bookmark: _Toc138065744][bookmark: _Toc169701308]A.1	General Information [326 IAC 274(c)][326 IAC 275(14)][326 IAC 271(22)]

The Permittee owns and operates a stationary municipal solid waste landfill. 



Source Address:	6231 MacBeth Road, Fort Wayne, Indiana 46809 

General Source Phone Number:		(260) 4423239

SIC Code:	4953 (Refuse Systems) 4939 (Combination Utilities, Not Elsewhere Classified)

County Location:			Allen

Source Location Status:			Attainment for all criteria pollutants 

Source Status:	Part 70 Operating Permit Program 

	Major Source, under PSD Rules

Major Source, Section 112 of the Clean Air Act

Not 1 of 28 Source Categories



[bookmark: _Toc473629385][bookmark: _Toc26948181][bookmark: _Toc83991471][bookmark: _Toc138065745][bookmark: _Toc169701309]A.2	Part 70 Source Definition [326 IAC 2-7-1(22)]

This source consists of three (3) plants:



(a) 	Plant 1, National Serv-All Landfill (Plant ID: 003-00257) is located at 6231 MacBeth Road, Fort Wayne, Indiana 46809, a landfill; 



(b) 	Plant 2, United Refuse Landfill (Plant ID: 003-00291) is located at 5000 Smith Road, Fort Wayne, Indiana 46804, a landfill; and



(c)	Plant 3, Toro Energy, LLC’s High Energy BTU Plant (Plant ID: 003-00474) is located at 5400-6398 Yohne Road, Fort Wayne, IN 46809, converting landfill gas into high BTU gas.



Since the three (3) plants are located on contiguous or adjacent properties belong to the same industrial grouping, and under common control of the same entity, they will be considered one (1) source.  Separate Part 70 permits will be issued to National Serv-All Landfill, United Refuse Landfill, and Toro Energy High BTU Plant for administrative purposes and to separately address the applicability of all applicable federal rules.



[bookmark: _Toc138065746][bookmark: _Toc169701310]A.3	Emission Units and Pollution Control Equipment Summary [326 IAC 274(c)(3)][326 IAC 275(14)]

This stationary source consists of the following emission units and pollution control devices: 



(a)	One (1) stationary municipal solid waste (MSW) landfill, constructed in 1966 and modified on July 1, 2005 to increase the maximum design capacity, with an approved capacity of 30,996,952 megagrams (43,541,647 cubic meters), with VOC and HAP emissions controlled by two open flares, identified as EU-3 and EU-4. 



[40 CFR 62, Subpart OOO] [40 CFR 61, Subpart M] [40 CFR 63, Subpart AAAA]



(b)	One (1) open landfill gas flare with a continuous pilot, constructed in 2004, identified as EU-3, with an approximate heat input of 152.10 MMBtu/hr and a maximum landfill gas flow of 5,000 SCFM, controlling VOC and HAP emissions from the MSW landfill.

	

[40 CFR 62, Subpart OOO] [40 CFR 63, Subpart AAAA]



(c)	One (1) open landfill gas flare, constructed in 2014, identified as EU-4, with an approximate heat input of 91.26 MMBtu/hr and a maximum landfill gas flow of 3,000 SCFM, controlling VOC and HAP emissions from the MSW landfill.

[40 CFR 62, Subpart OOO] [40 CFR 63, Subpart AAAA]



[bookmark: _Toc138065747][bookmark: _Toc169701311]A.4	Specifically Regulated Insignificant Activities [326 IAC 271(21)][326 IAC 274(c)][326 IAC 275(14)] 

This stationary source also includes the following insignificant activities which are specifically regulated, as defined in 326 IAC 271(21): 



(a)	Three (3) parts washers with a combined solvent consumption of 240 gallons per year, constructed after 1990. 



(b)	Paved and unpaved roads and parking lots with public access. 



(c)	One (1) solidification process used to solidify non-hazardous liquid commercial wastes including liquids from restaurant grease traps and oily liquids from car washes. 



[bookmark: _Toc138065748][bookmark: _Toc169701312]A.5	Insignificant Activities [326 IAC 271(21)][326 IAC 274(c)][326 IAC 275(14)] 

This stationary source also includes the following insignificant activities, as defined in 326 IAC 271(21): 



(a)	Combustion related activities, as follows:



(1)	Two (2) 0.150 MMBtu/hr diesel-fired torpedo heaters.



(2)	Six (6) 0.150 MMBtu/hr diesel-fired torpedo heaters.



(3)	One (1) Bryant office propane-fired furnace, with a maximum heat input capacity of 0.15 MMBtu/hr.



(4)	Eleven (11) propane-fired space heaters in the maintenance shop, each with a maximum heat input capacity of 0.15 MMBtu/hr.



(5)	Two (2) propane-fired radiant heaters in the LF shop, each with a maximum heat input capacity of 0.15 MMBtu/hr.



(b)	One (1) 136,000 gallon leachate storage tank, identified as Tank 1, with VOC emissions of less than 3 lb/hr and 15 pounds per day and HAP emissions of less than 1 lb/day.



(c)	One (1) 20,000 gallon leachate storage tank used for leachate recirculation, identified as Tank 2 with VOC emissions of less than 3 lb/hr and 15 pounds per day and HAP emissions of less than 1 lb/day.



(d)	One (1) 20,000 gallon leachate storage tank, identified as Tank 3 with VOC emissions of less than 3 lb/hr and 15 pounds per day and HAP emissions of less than 1 lb/day.



(e)	Fuel dispensing activities, including a petroleum fuel other than gasoline dispensing facility, consisting of tanks having a storage tank capacity less than or equal to ten thousand five hundred (10,500) gallons, each, and dispensing three thousand five hundred (3,500) gallons per day or less, including the following:



(1)	One (1) 10,000 gallon off-road diesel fuel underground storage tank (UST).



(2)	One (1) 2,800 gallon diesel fuel above ground storage tank (AST).



(3)	One (1) 25,000 gallon diesel fuel AST.



(f)	The following VOC and HAP storage containers:



(1)	Storage tanks with capacity less than or equal to one thousand (1,000) gallons and annual throughputs equal to or less than twelve thousand (12,000) gallons.



(2)	Vessels storing lubricating oils, hydraulic oils and machining fluids including the following:



(i)	Two (2) 500 gallon motor oil AST.



(ii)	One (1) 300 gallon gear oil AST.



(iii)	Two (2) 500 gallon hydraulic oil AST.



(iv)	One (1) 280 gallon used oil AST.



(v)	Multiple 55 gallon drums containing gear oil and used oil.



(g)	Production related activities, including the following:



	(1)	Application of:



(i)	oils;



(ii)	greases;



(iii)	lubricants; and



(iv)	nonvolatile material;



	as temporary protective coatings.



(2)	Welding equipment related to manufacturing activities not resulting in the emission of HAPs.



(h)	One (1) ozone treatment process including a leachate stripper, constructed in 2016, identified as EU-5, with a maximum capacity of 6.0 gallons of leachate or condensate per minute, emissions are uncontrolled.



(i)	Composting activities.



(j)	Soil venting system - 22 out-of-refuse passive vents.



(k)	Twelve (12) odor control solar flares, identified as SF1 through SF12, approved in 2022 for construction, with a maximum capacity of 50 cfm, each, and exhausting to the outdoors.



[Note: Since the twelve (12) odor control solar flares SF1 through SF12 will be installed in landfill cells in which the initial solid waste has been placed for a period of less than 5 years, pursuant to 40 CFR 62.16714(b)(2)(ii), the source is not required to collect the landfill gas with the active collection system or control that landfill gas with a control device meeting the requirements of 40 CFR 62.16714(c).  Once the initial solid waste has been in place for five (5) years, landfill gas collected from those cells will need to be conveyed to control devices meeting the requirements of 40 CFR 62.16714(c).]



[bookmark: _Toc138065749][bookmark: _Toc169701313]A.6	Part 70 Permit Applicability [326 IAC 272]

This stationary source is required to have a Part 70 permit by 326 IAC 272 (Applicability) because: 



(a)	It is a major source, as defined in 326 IAC 271(22);



(b)	It is a source in a source category designated by the United States Environmental Protection Agency (U.S. EPA) under 40 CFR 70.3 (Part 70 - Applicability).






[bookmark: _Toc138065750][bookmark: _Toc169701314]SECTION B	GENERAL CONDITIONS

[bookmark: _Toc138065751][bookmark: _Toc169701315]B.1	Definitions [326 IAC 271]

Terms in this permit shall have the definition assigned to such terms in the referenced regulation.  In the absence of definitions in the referenced regulation, the applicable definitions found in the statutes or regulations (IC 1311, 326 IAC 12 and 326 IAC 27) shall prevail. 



[bookmark: _Toc138065752][bookmark: _Toc169701316]B.2	Permit Term [326 IAC 275(2)][326 IAC 21.19.5][326 IAC 274(a)(1)(D)][IC 131536(a)]

(a)	This permit, T0034427000257, is issued for a fixed term of five (5) years from the issuance date of this permit, as determined in accordance with IC 421.535(f) and IC 131553.  Subsequent revisions, modifications, or amendments of this permit do not affect the expiration date of this permit.



(b)	If IDEM, OAQ, upon receiving a timely and complete renewal permit application, fails to issue or deny the permit renewal prior to the expiration date of this permit, this existing permit shall not expire and all terms and conditions shall continue in effect, including any permit shield provided in 326 IAC 2715, until the renewal permit has been issued or denied.



[bookmark: _Toc138065753][bookmark: _Toc169701317]B.3	Term of Conditions [326 IAC 21.19.5]

Notwithstanding the permit term of a permit to construct, a permit to operate, or a permit modification, any condition established in a permit issued pursuant to a permitting program approved in the state implementation plan shall remain in effect until:



(a) 	the condition is modified in a subsequent permit action pursuant to Title I of the Clean Air Act; or



(b)	the emission unit to which the condition pertains permanently ceases operation.



[bookmark: _Toc138065754][bookmark: _Toc169701318]B.4	Enforceability [326 IAC 277] [IC 131712]

Unless otherwise stated, all terms and conditions in this permit, including any provisions designed to limit the source's potential to emit, are enforceable by IDEM, the United States Environmental Protection Agency (U.S. EPA) and by citizens in accordance with the Clean Air Act. 



[bookmark: _Toc138065755][bookmark: _Toc169701319]B.5	Severability [326 IAC 275(5)]

The provisions of this permit are severable; a determination that any portion of this permit is invalid shall not affect the validity of the remainder of the permit.



[bookmark: _Toc138065756][bookmark: _Toc169701320]B.6	Property Rights or Exclusive Privilege [326 IAC 275(6)(D)]

This permit does not convey any property rights of any sort or any exclusive privilege.



[bookmark: _Toc138065757][bookmark: _Toc169701321]B.7	Duty to Provide Information [326 IAC 275(6)(E)]

(a)	The Permittee shall furnish to IDEM, OAQ, within a reasonable time, any information that IDEM, OAQ may request in writing to determine whether cause exists for modifying, revoking and reissuing, or terminating this permit, or to determine compliance with this permit.  Upon request, the Permittee shall also furnish to IDEM, OAQ copies of records required to be kept by this permit.



(b)	For information furnished by the Permittee to IDEM, OAQ, the Permittee may include a claim of confidentiality in accordance with 326 IAC 17.1.  When furnishing copies of requested records directly to U. S. EPA, the Permittee may assert a claim of confidentiality in accordance with 40 CFR 2, Subpart B.



[bookmark: _Toc138065758][bookmark: _Toc169701322]B.8	Certification [326 IAC 274(f)][326 IAC 276(1)][326 IAC 275(3)(C)]

(a)	A certification required by this permit meets the requirements of 326 IAC 276(1) if: 



(1)	it contains a certification by a "responsible official" as defined by 326 IAC 271(35), and



(2)	the certification states that, based on information and belief formed after reasonable inquiry, the statements and information in the document are true, accurate, and complete. 



(b)	The Permittee may use the attached Certification Form, or its equivalent with each submittal requiring certification. One (1) certification may cover multiple forms in one (1) submittal.



(c)	A "responsible official" is defined at 326 IAC 271(35).



[bookmark: _Toc138065759][bookmark: _Toc169701323]B.9	Annual Compliance Certification [326 IAC 276(5)]

(a)	The Permittee shall annually submit a compliance certification report which addresses the status of the source’s compliance with the terms and conditions contained in this permit, including emission limitations, standards, or work practices.  All certifications shall cover the time period from January 1 to December 31 of the previous year, and shall be submitted no later than July 1 of each year to:



Indiana Department of Environmental Management

Compliance and Enforcement Branch, Office of Air Quality

100 North Senate Avenue

MC 6153 IGCN 1003

Indianapolis, Indiana 462042251



and



United States Environmental Protection Agency, Region 5

Air and Radiation Division, Air Enforcement Branch - Indiana (AE-17J)

77 West Jackson Boulevard

Chicago, Illinois 606043590



(b)	The annual compliance certification report required by this permit shall be considered timely if the date postmarked on the envelope or certified mail receipt, or affixed by the shipper on the private shipping receipt, is on or before the date it is due.  If the document is submitted by any other means, it shall be considered timely if received by IDEM, OAQ on or before the date it is due.



(c) The annual compliance certification report shall include the following:



(1)	The appropriate identification of each term or condition of this permit that is the basis of the certification;



(2)	The compliance status;



(3)	Whether compliance was continuous or intermittent;



(4)	The methods used for determining the compliance status of the source, currently and over the reporting period consistent with 326 IAC 275(3); and



(5)	Such other facts, as specified in Sections D of this permit, as IDEM, OAQ may require to determine the compliance status of the source.



The submittal by the Permittee does require a certification that meets the requirements of 326 IAC 276(1) by a "responsible official" as defined by 326 IAC 271(35).



[bookmark: _Toc138065760][bookmark: _Toc169701324]B.10	Preventive Maintenance Plan [326 IAC 275(12)][326 IAC 163]

(a)	A Preventive Maintenance Plan meets the requirements of 326 IAC 163 if it includes, at a minimum:



(1)	Identification of the individual(s) responsible for inspecting, maintaining, and repairing emission control devices;



(2)	A description of the items or conditions that will be inspected and the inspection schedule for said items or conditions; and



(3)	Identification and quantification of the replacement parts that will be maintained in inventory for quick replacement.



The Permittee shall implement the PMPs.



(b)	If required by specific condition(s) in Section D of this permit where no PMP was previously required, the Permittee shall prepare and maintain Preventive Maintenance Plans (PMPs) no later than ninety (90) days after issuance of this permit or ninety (90) days after initial start-up, whichever is later, including the following information on each facility:



(1)	Identification of the individual(s) responsible for inspecting, maintaining, and repairing emission control devices;



(2)	A description of the items or conditions that will be inspected and the inspection schedule for said items or conditions; and



(3)	Identification and quantification of the replacement parts that will be maintained in inventory for quick replacement.



If, due to circumstances beyond the Permittee’s control, the PMPs cannot be prepared and maintained within the above time frame, the Permittee may extend the date an additional ninety (90) days provided the Permittee notifies:



Indiana Department of Environmental Management

Compliance and Enforcement Branch, Office of Air Quality

100 North Senate Avenue

MC 6153 IGCN 1003

Indianapolis, Indiana 462042251



The PMP extension notification does not require a certification that meets the requirements of 326 IAC 276(1) by a "responsible official" as defined by 326 IAC 271(35).



The Permittee shall implement the PMPs.



(c)	A copy of the PMPs shall be submitted to IDEM, OAQ upon request and within a reasonable time, and shall be subject to review and approval by IDEM, OAQ.  IDEM, OAQ may require the Permittee to revise its PMPs whenever lack of proper maintenance causes or is the primary contributor to an exceedance of any limitation on emissions. The PMPs and their submittal do not require a certification that meets the requirements of 326 IAC 276(1) by a "responsible official" as defined by 326 IAC 271(35).



(d)	To the extent the Permittee is required by 40 CFR Part 60/63 to have an Operation Maintenance, and Monitoring (OMM) Plan for a unit, such Plan is deemed to satisfy the PMP requirements of 326 IAC 163 for that unit.



[bookmark: _Toc138065761][bookmark: _Toc169701325]B.11	Emergency Provisions [326 IAC 2716]

(a)	An emergency, as defined in 326 IAC 271(12), is not an affirmative defense for an action brought for noncompliance with a federal or state health-based emission limitation.



(b)	An emergency, as defined in 326 IAC 271(12), constitutes an affirmative defense to an action brought for noncompliance with a technology-based emission limitation if the affirmative defense of an emergency is demonstrated through properly signed, contemporaneous operating logs or other relevant evidence that describe the following:



(1)	An emergency occurred and the Permittee can, to the extent possible, identify the causes of the emergency;



(2)	The permitted facility was at the time being properly operated;



(3)	During the period of an emergency, the Permittee took all reasonable steps to minimize levels of emissions that exceeded the emission standards or other requirements in this permit;



(4)	For each emergency lasting one (1) hour or more, the Permittee notified IDEM, OAQ within four (4) daytime business hours after the beginning of the emergency, or after the emergency was discovered or reasonably should have been discovered; 



Telephone Number: 18004516027 (ask for Office of Air Quality, 

Compliance and Enforcement Branch), or

Telephone Number: 3172330178 (ask for Office of Air Quality, 

Compliance and Enforcement Branch)

Facsimile Number: 3172336865



(5)	For each emergency lasting one (1) hour or more, the Permittee submitted the attached Emergency Occurrence Report Form or its equivalent, either by mail or facsimile to:



Indiana Department of Environmental Management

Compliance and Enforcement Branch, Office of Air Quality

100 North Senate Avenue

MC 6153 IGCN 1003

Indianapolis, Indiana 462042251



within two (2) working days of the time when emission limitations were exceeded due to the emergency.



The notice fulfills the requirement of 326 IAC 275(3)(C)(ii) and must contain the following:



(A)	A description of the emergency;



(B)	Any steps taken to mitigate the emissions; and



(C)	Corrective actions taken.



The notification which shall be submitted by the Permittee does not require a certification that meets the requirements of 326 IAC 276(1) by a "responsible official" as defined by 326 IAC 271(35).



(6)	The Permittee immediately took all reasonable steps to correct the emergency.



(c)	In any enforcement proceeding, the Permittee seeking to establish the occurrence of an emergency has the burden of proof.



(d)	This emergency provision supersedes 326 IAC 16 (Malfunctions).  This permit condition is in addition to any emergency or upset provision contained in any applicable requirement.



(e)	The Permittee seeking to establish the occurrence of an emergency shall make records available upon request to ensure that failure to implement a PMP did not cause or contribute to an exceedance of any limitations on emissions.  However, IDEM, OAQ may require that the Preventive Maintenance Plans required under 326 IAC 274(c)(8) be revised in response to an emergency.



(f)	Failure to notify IDEM, OAQ by telephone or facsimile of an emergency lasting more than one (1) hour in accordance with (b)(4) and (5) of this condition shall constitute a violation of 326 IAC 27 and any other applicable rules.



(g)	If the emergency situation causes a deviation from a technology-based limit, the Permittee may continue to operate the affected emitting facilities during the emergency provided the Permittee immediately takes all reasonable steps to correct the emergency and minimize emissions.



[bookmark: _Toc138065762][bookmark: _Toc169701326]B.12	Permit Shield [326 IAC 2715][326 IAC 2720][326 IAC 2712]

(a)	Pursuant to 326 IAC 2715, the Permittee has been granted a permit shield.  The permit shield provides that compliance with the conditions of this permit shall be deemed compliance with any applicable requirements as of the date of permit issuance, provided that either the applicable requirements are included and specifically identified in this permit or the permit contains an explicit determination or concise summary of a determination that other specifically identified requirements are not applicable.  The Indiana statutes from IC 13 and rules from 326 IAC, referenced in conditions in this permit, are those applicable at the time the permit was issued.  The issuance or possession of this permit shall not alone constitute a defense against an alleged violation of any law, regulation or standard, except for the requirement to obtain a Part 70 permit under 326 IAC 27 or for applicable requirements for which a permit shield has been granted.



This permit shield does not extend to applicable requirements which are promulgated after the date of issuance of this permit unless this permit has been modified to reflect such new requirements.



(b)	If, after issuance of this permit, it is determined that the permit is in nonconformance with an applicable requirement that applied to the source on the date of permit issuance, IDEM, OAQ shall immediately take steps to reopen and revise this permit and issue a compliance order to the Permittee to ensure expeditious compliance with the applicable requirement until the permit is reissued.  The permit shield shall continue in effect so long as the Permittee is in compliance with the compliance order.



(c)	No permit shield shall apply to any permit term or condition that is determined after issuance of this permit to have been based on erroneous information supplied in the permit application.  Erroneous information means information that the Permittee knew to be false, or in the exercise of reasonable care should have been known to be false, at the time the information was submitted.



(d)	Nothing in 326 IAC 2715 or in this permit shall alter or affect the following:



(1)	The provisions of Section 303 of the Clean Air Act (emergency orders), including the authority of the U.S. EPA under Section 303 of the Clean Air Act;



(2)	The liability of the Permittee for any violation of applicable requirements prior to or at the time of this permit's issuance;



(3)	The applicable requirements of the acid rain program, consistent with Section 408(a) of the Clean Air Act; and



(4)	The ability of U.S. EPA to obtain information from the Permittee under Section 114 of the Clean Air Act.



(e)	This permit shield is not applicable to any change made under 326 IAC 2720(b)(2) (Sections 502(b)(10) of the Clean Air Act changes) and 326 IAC 2720(c)(2) (trading based on State Implementation Plan (SIP) provisions).



(f)	This permit shield is not applicable to modifications eligible for group processing until after IDEM, OAQ, has issued the modifications. [326 IAC 2712(c)(7)]



(g)	This permit shield is not applicable to minor Part 70 permit modifications until after IDEM, OAQ, has issued the modification. [326 IAC 2712(b)(8)]



[bookmark: _Toc138065763][bookmark: _Toc169701327]B.13	Prior Permits Superseded [326 IAC 21.19.5][326 IAC 2710.5]

(a)	All terms and conditions of permits established prior to T0034427000257 and issued pursuant to permitting programs approved into the state implementation plan have been either:



(1)	incorporated as originally stated,



(2)	revised under 326 IAC 2710.5, or



(3)	deleted under 326 IAC 2710.5.



(b)	Provided that all terms and conditions are accurately reflected in this permit, all previous registrations and permits are superseded by this Part 70 operating permit.



[bookmark: _Toc138065764][bookmark: _Toc169701328]B.14	Termination of Right to Operate [326 IAC 2710][326 IAC 274(a)] 

The Permittee's right to operate this source terminates with the expiration of this permit unless a timely and complete renewal application is submitted at least nine (9) months prior to the date of expiration of the source’s existing permit, consistent with 326 IAC 273 and 326 IAC 274(a).



[bookmark: _Toc138065765][bookmark: _Toc169701329]B.15	Permit Modification, Reopening, Revocation and Reissuance, or Termination 
[326 IAC 275(6)(C)][326 IAC 278(a)][326 IAC 279]

(a)	This permit may be modified, reopened, revoked and reissued, or terminated for cause.  The filing of a request by the Permittee for a Part 70 Operating Permit modification, revocation and reissuance, or termination, or of a notification of planned changes or anticipated noncompliance does not stay any condition of this permit. [326 IAC 275(6)(C)]  The notification by the Permittee does require a certification that meets the requirements of 326 IAC 276(1) by a "responsible official" as defined by 326 IAC 271(35).



(b)	This permit shall be reopened and revised under any of the circumstances listed in IC 131572 or if IDEM, OAQ determines any of the following:



(1)	That this permit contains a material mistake.



(2)	That inaccurate statements were made in establishing the emissions standards or other terms or conditions.



(3)	That this permit must be revised or revoked to assure compliance with an applicable requirement. [326 IAC 279(a)(3)]



(c)	Proceedings by IDEM, OAQ to reopen and revise this permit shall follow the same procedures as apply to initial permit issuance and shall affect only those parts of this permit for which cause to reopen exists.  Such reopening and revision shall be made as expeditiously as practicable. [326 IAC 279(b)]



(d)	The reopening and revision of this permit, under 326 IAC 279(a), shall not be initiated before notice of such intent is provided to the Permittee by IDEM, OAQ at least thirty (30) days in advance of the date this permit is to be reopened, except that IDEM, OAQ may provide a shorter time period in the case of an emergency. [326 IAC 279(c)]



[bookmark: _Toc138065766][bookmark: _Toc169701330]B.16	Permit Renewal [326 IAC 273][326 IAC 274][326 IAC 278(e)] 

(a)	The application for renewal shall be submitted using the application form or forms prescribed by IDEM, OAQ and shall include the information specified in 326 IAC 274.  Such information shall be included in the application for each emission unit at this source, except those emission units included on the trivial or insignificant activities list contained in 326 IAC 271(21) and 326 IAC 271(42).  The renewal application does require a certification that meets the requirements of 326 IAC 276(1) by a "responsible official" as defined by 326 IAC 271(35).



Request for renewal shall be submitted to:



Indiana Department of Environmental Management

Permit Administration and Support Section, Office of Air Quality

100 North Senate Avenue

MC 6153 IGCN 1003

Indianapolis, Indiana 462042251



(b)	A timely renewal application is one that is:



(1)	Submitted at least nine (9) months prior to the date of the expiration of this permit; and



(2)	If the date postmarked on the envelope or certified mail receipt, or affixed by the shipper on the private shipping receipt, is on or before the date it is due.  If the document is submitted by any other means, it shall be considered timely if received by IDEM, OAQ on or before the date it is due.



(c)	If the Permittee submits a timely and complete application for renewal of this permit, the source’s failure to have a permit is not a violation of 326 IAC 27 until IDEM, OAQ takes final action on the renewal application, except that this protection shall cease to apply if, subsequent to the completeness determination, the Permittee fails to submit by the deadline specified, pursuant to 326 IAC 274(a)(2)(D), in writing by IDEM, OAQ any additional information identified as being needed to process the application.



[bookmark: _Toc138065767][bookmark: _Toc169701331]B.17	Permit Amendment or Modification [326 IAC 2711][326 IAC 2712] 

(a)	Permit amendments and modifications are governed by the requirements of 326 IAC 2711 or 326 IAC 2712 whenever the Permittee seeks to amend or modify this permit.



(b)	Any application requesting an amendment or modification of this permit shall be submitted to:



Indiana Department of Environmental Management

Permit Administration and Support Section, Office of Air Quality

100 North Senate Avenue

MC 6153 IGCN 1003

Indianapolis, Indiana 462042251



Any such application does require a certification that meets the requirements of 326 IAC 276(1) by a "responsible official" as defined by 326 IAC 271(35).



(c)	The Permittee may implement administrative amendment changes addressed in the request for an administrative amendment immediately upon submittal of the request. [326 IAC 2711(c)(3)]



[bookmark: _Toc138065768][bookmark: _Toc169701332]B.18	Permit Revision Under Economic Incentives and Other Programs [326 IAC 275(8)][326 IAC 2712(b)(2)]

(a)	No Part 70 permit revision or notice shall be required under any approved economic incentives, marketable Part 70 permits, emissions trading, and other similar programs or processes for changes that are provided for in a Part 70 permit.



(b)	Notwithstanding 326 IAC 2712(b)(1) and 326 IAC 2712(c)(1), minor Part 70 permit modification procedures may be used for Part 70 modifications involving the use of economic incentives, marketable Part 70 permits, emissions trading, and other similar approaches to the extent that such minor Part 70 permit modification procedures are explicitly provided for in the applicable State Implementation Plan (SIP) or in applicable requirements promulgated or approved by the U.S. EPA.



[bookmark: _Toc138065769][bookmark: _Toc169701333]B.19	Operational Flexibility [326 IAC 2720][326 IAC 2710.5]

(a)	The Permittee may make any change or changes at the source that are described in 326 IAC 2720(b) or (c) without a prior permit revision, if each of the following conditions is met:



(1)	The changes are not modifications under any provision of Title I of the Clean Air Act;



(2)	Any preconstruction approval required by 326 IAC 2710.5 has been obtained;



(3)	The changes do not result in emissions which exceed the limitations provided in this permit (whether expressed herein as a rate of emissions or in terms of total emissions);



(4)	The Permittee notifies the:



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

Air and Radiation Division, Regulation Development Branch - Indiana (AR-18J)

77 West Jackson Boulevard

Chicago, Illinois 606043590



in advance of the change by written notification at least ten (10) days in advance of the proposed change.  The Permittee shall attach every such notice to the Permittee's copy of this permit; and



(5)	The Permittee maintains records on-site, on a rolling five (5) year basis, which document all such changes and emission trades that are subject to 326 IAC 2720(b)(1) and (c)(1).  The Permittee shall make such records available, upon reasonable request, for public review.  



Such records shall consist of all information required to be submitted to IDEM, OAQ in the notices specified in 326 IAC 2720(b)(1) and (c)(1).



(b)	The Permittee may make Section 502(b)(10) of the Clean Air Act changes (this term is defined at 326 IAC 271(37)) without a permit revision, subject to the constraint of 326 IAC 2720(a).  For each such Section 502(b)(10) of the Clean Air Act change, the required written notification shall include the following:



(1)	A brief description of the change within the source;



(2)	The date on which the change will occur;



(3)	Any change in emissions; and 



(4)	Any permit term or condition that is no longer applicable as a result of the change.



The notification which shall be submitted is not considered an application form, report or compliance certification.  Therefore, the notification by the Permittee does not require a certification that meets the requirements of 326 IAC 276(1) by a "responsible official" as defined by 326 IAC 271(35).



(c)	Emission Trades [326 IAC 2720(c)]

The Permittee may trade emissions increases and decreases at the source, where the applicable SIP provides for such emission trades without requiring a permit revision, subject to the constraints of Section (a) of this condition and those in 326 IAC 2720(c).



(d)	Alternative Operating Scenarios [326 IAC 2720(d)]

The Permittee may make changes at the source within the range of alternative operating scenarios that are described in the terms and conditions of this permit in accordance with 326 IAC 275(9).  No prior notification of IDEM, OAQ or U.S. EPA is required.



(e)	Backup fuel switches specifically addressed in, and limited under, Section D of this permit shall not be considered alternative operating scenarios.  Therefore, the notification requirements of part (a) of this condition do not apply.



[bookmark: _Toc138065770][bookmark: _Toc169701334]B.20	Source Modification Requirement [326 IAC 2710.5]

A modification, construction, or reconstruction is governed by the requirements of 326 IAC 2.



[bookmark: _Toc138065771][bookmark: _Toc169701335]B.21	Inspection and Entry [326 IAC 276][IC 131422][IC 133031][IC 131732]

Upon presentation of proper identification cards, credentials, and other documents as may be required by law, and subject to the Permittee’s right under all applicable laws and regulations to assert that the information collected by the agency is confidential and entitled to be treated as such, the Permittee shall allow IDEM, OAQ, U.S. EPA, or an authorized representative to perform the following:



(a)	Enter upon the Permittee's premises where a Part 70 source is located, or emissions related activity is conducted, or where records must be kept under the conditions of this permit;



(b)	As authorized by the Clean Air Act, IC 131422, IC 131732, and IC 133031, have access to and copy any records that must be kept under the conditions of this permit;



(c)	As authorized by the Clean Air Act, IC 131422, IC 131732, and IC 133031, inspect any facilities, equipment (including monitoring and air pollution control equipment), practices, or operations regulated or required under this permit; 



(d)	As authorized by the Clean Air Act, IC 131422, IC 131732, and IC 133031, sample or monitor substances or parameters for the purpose of assuring compliance with this permit or applicable requirements; and



(e)	As authorized by the Clean Air Act, IC 131422, IC 131732, and IC 133031, utilize any photographic, recording, testing, monitoring, or other equipment for the purpose of assuring compliance with this permit or applicable requirements.



[bookmark: _Toc138065772][bookmark: _Toc169701336]B.22	Transfer of Ownership or Operational Control [326 IAC 2711]

(a)	The Permittee must comply with the requirements of 326 IAC 2711 whenever the Permittee seeks to change the ownership or operational control of the source and no other change in the permit is necessary.



(b)	Any application requesting a change in the ownership or operational control of the source shall contain a written agreement containing a specific date for transfer of permit responsibility, coverage and liability between the current and new Permittee.  The application shall be submitted to:



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



[bookmark: _Toc138065773][bookmark: _Toc169701337]B.23	Annual Fee Payment [326 IAC 2719] [326 IAC 275(7)][326 IAC 21.17]

(a)	The Permittee shall pay annual fees to IDEM, OAQ within thirty (30) calendar days of receipt of a billing.  Pursuant to 326 IAC 2719(b), if the Permittee does not receive a bill from IDEM, OAQ the applicable fee is due April 1 of each year.

	

(b)	Except as provided in 326 IAC 2719(e), failure to pay may result in administrative enforcement action or revocation of this permit.



(c)	The Permittee may call the following telephone numbers: 18004516027 or 3172338590 (ask for OAQ, Billing, Licensing, and Training Section), to determine the appropriate permit fee. 



[bookmark: _Toc138065774][bookmark: _Toc169701338]B.24	Credible Evidence [326 IAC 275(3)][326 IAC 276][62 FR 8314] [326 IAC 116]

For the purpose of submitting compliance certifications or establishing whether or not the Permittee has violated or is in violation of any condition of this permit, nothing in this permit shall preclude the use, including the exclusive use, of any credible evidence or information relevant to whether the Permittee would have been in compliance with the condition of this permit if the appropriate performance or compliance test or procedure had been performed.






[bookmark: _Toc138065775][bookmark: _Toc169701339]SECTION C	SOURCE OPERATION CONDITIONS



Entire Source



[bookmark: _Toc138065776][bookmark: _Toc169701340]Emission Limitations and Standards [326 IAC 275(1)]

[bookmark: _Toc138065777][bookmark: _Toc169701341]C.1	Particulate Emission Limitations For Processes with Process Weight Rates Less Than One Hundred (100) Pounds per Hour [326 IAC 632]

Pursuant to 326 IAC 632(e)(2), particulate emissions from any process not exempt under 326 IAC 631(b) or (c) which has a maximum process weight rate less than 100 pounds per hour and the methods in 326 IAC 632(b) through (d) do not apply shall not exceed 0.551 pounds per hour.



[bookmark: _Toc138065778][bookmark: _Toc169701342]C.2	Opacity [326 IAC 51]  

Pursuant to 326 IAC 512 (Opacity Limitations), except as provided in 326 IAC 511 (Applicability) and 326 IAC 513 (Temporary Alternative Opacity Limitations), opacity shall meet the following, unless otherwise stated in this permit:



(a)	Opacity shall not exceed an average of forty percent (40%) in any one (1) six (6) minute averaging period as determined in 326 IAC 514. 



(b)	Opacity shall not exceed sixty percent (60%) for more than a cumulative total of fifteen (15) minutes (sixty (60) readings as measured according to 40 CFR 60, Appendix A, Method 9 or fifteen (15) one (1) minute nonoverlapping integrated averages for a continuous opacity monitor) in a six (6) hour period.



[bookmark: _Toc138065779][bookmark: _Toc169701343]C.3	Open Burning [326 IAC 41] [IC 13179]  

The Permittee shall not open burn any material except as provided in 326 IAC 413, 326 IAC 414 or 326 IAC 416.  The previous sentence notwithstanding, the Permittee may open burn in accordance with an open burning approval issued by the Commissioner under 326 IAC 414.1.



[bookmark: _Toc138065780][bookmark: _Toc169701344]C.4	Incineration [326 IAC 42] [326 IAC 912]  

The Permittee shall not operate an incinerator except as provided in 326 IAC 42 or in this permit.  The Permittee shall not operate a refuse incinerator or refuse burning equipment except as provided in 326 IAC 912 or in this permit.



[bookmark: _Toc138065781][bookmark: _Toc169701345]C.5	Fugitive Dust Emissions [326 IAC 64]

The Permittee shall not allow fugitive dust to escape beyond the property line or boundaries of the property, right-of-way, or easement on which the source is located, in a manner that would violate 326 IAC 64 (Fugitive Dust Emissions).  326 IAC 642(4) is not federally enforceable.   



[bookmark: _Toc138065782][bookmark: _Toc169701346]C.6	Fugitive Particulate Matter Emission Limitations [326 IAC 65]

Pursuant to 326 IAC 65 (Fugitive Particulate Matter Emission Limitations), fugitive particulate matter emissions shall be controlled according to the attached plan as in Attachment A. The provisions of 326 IAC 65 are not federally enforceable.



[bookmark: _Toc138065783][bookmark: _Toc169701347]C.7	Asbestos Abatement Projects [326 IAC 1410] [326 IAC 18] [40 CFR 61, Subpart M]

(a)	Notification requirements apply to each owner or operator.  If the combined amount of regulated asbestos containing material (RACM) to be stripped, removed or disturbed is at least 260 linear feet on pipes or 160 square feet on other facility components, or at least thirty-five (35) cubic feet on all facility components, then the notification requirements of 326 IAC 14103 are mandatory.  All demolition projects require notification whether or not asbestos is present.



(b)	The Permittee shall ensure that a written notification is sent on a form provided by the Commissioner at least ten (10) working days before asbestos stripping or removal work or before demolition begins, per 326 IAC 14103, and shall update such notice as necessary, including, but not limited to the following:



(1)	When the amount of affected asbestos containing material increases or decreases by at least twenty percent (20%); or



(2)	If there is a change in the following:



(A)	Asbestos removal or demolition start date;



(B)	Removal or demolition contractor; or



(C)	Waste disposal site.



(c)	The Permittee shall ensure that the notice is postmarked or delivered according to the guidelines set forth in 326 IAC 14103(c).



(d)	The notice to be submitted shall include the information enumerated in 326 IAC 14103(d).



All required notifications shall be submitted to:



Indiana Department of Environmental Management

Compliance and Enforcement Branch, Office of Air Quality

100 North Senate Avenue

MC 6153 IGCN 1003

Indianapolis, Indiana 462042251



The notice shall include a signed certification from the owner or operator that the information provided in this notification is correct and that only Indiana licensed workers and project supervisors will be used to implement the asbestos removal project.  The notifications do not require a certification that meets the requirements of 326 IAC 276(1) by a "responsible official" as defined by 326 IAC 271(35).



(e)	Procedures for Asbestos Emission Control

The Permittee shall comply with the applicable emission control procedures in 326 IAC 14104 and 40 CFR 61.145(c).  Per 326 IAC 14101, emission control requirements are applicable for any removal or disturbance of RACM greater than three (3) linear feet on pipes or three (3) square feet on any other facility components or a total of at least 0.75 cubic feet on all facility components.



(f)	Demolition and Renovation

The Permittee shall thoroughly inspect the affected facility or part of the facility where the demolition or renovation will occur for the presence of asbestos pursuant to 40 CFR 61.145(a).



(g)	Indiana Licensed Asbestos Inspector

The Permittee shall comply with 326 IAC 14101(a) that requires the owner or operator, prior to a renovation/demolition, to use an Indiana Licensed Asbestos Inspector to thoroughly inspect the affected portion of the facility for the presence of asbestos.  The requirement to use an Indiana Licensed Asbestos inspector is not federally enforceable.



[bookmark: _Toc138065784][bookmark: _Toc169701348]Testing Requirements [326 IAC 276(1)]

[bookmark: _Toc138065785][bookmark: _Toc169701349]C.8	Performance Testing [326 IAC 36]

(a)	For performance testing required by this permit, a test protocol, except as provided elsewhere in this permit, shall be submitted to:



Indiana Department of Environmental Management

Compliance and Enforcement Branch, Office of Air Quality

100 North Senate Avenue

MC 6153 IGCN 1003

Indianapolis, Indiana 462042251



no later than thirty-five (35) days prior to the intended test date.  The protocol submitted by the Permittee does not require a certification that meets the requirements of 326 IAC 276(1) by a "responsible official" as defined by 326 IAC 271(35).



(b)	The Permittee shall notify IDEM, OAQ of the actual test date at least fourteen (14) days prior to the actual test date.  The notification submitted by the Permittee does not require a certification that meets the requirements of 326 IAC 276(1) by a "responsible official" as defined by 326 IAC 271(35).



(c)	Pursuant to 326 IAC 364(b), all test reports must be received by IDEM, OAQ not later than forty-five (45) days after the completion of the testing.  An extension may be granted by IDEM, OAQ if the Permittee submits to IDEM, OAQ a reasonable written explanation not later than five (5) days prior to the end of the initial forty-five (45) day period.



[bookmark: _Toc138065786][bookmark: _Toc169701350]Compliance Requirements [326 IAC 21.111]

[bookmark: _Toc138065787][bookmark: _Toc169701351]C.9	Compliance Requirements [326 IAC 21.111]

The commissioner may require stack testing, monitoring, or reporting at any time to assure compliance with all applicable requirements by issuing an order under 326 IAC 21.111.  Any monitoring or testing shall be performed in accordance with 326 IAC 3 or other methods approved by the commissioner or the U. S. EPA.



[bookmark: _Toc138065788][bookmark: _Toc169701352]Compliance Monitoring Requirements [326 IAC 275(1)][326 IAC 276(1)]

[bookmark: _Toc138065789][bookmark: _Toc169701353]C.10	Compliance Monitoring [326 IAC 275(3)][326 IAC 276(1)]

(a)	For new units:

Unless otherwise specified in the approval for the new emission unit(s), compliance monitoring for new emission units shall be implemented on and after the date of initial start-up.



(b) 	For existing units:

Unless otherwise specified in this permit, for all monitoring requirements not already legally required, the Permittee shall be allowed up to ninety (90) days from the date of permit issuance to begin such monitoring.  If, due to circumstances beyond the Permittee's control, any monitoring equipment required by this permit cannot be installed and operated no later than ninety (90) days after permit issuance, the Permittee may extend the compliance schedule related to the equipment for an additional ninety (90) days provided the Permittee notifies:



Indiana Department of Environmental Management

Compliance and Enforcement Branch, Office of Air Quality

100 North Senate Avenue

MC 6153 IGCN 1003

Indianapolis, Indiana 462042251



in writing, prior to the end of the initial ninety (90) day compliance schedule, with full justification of the reasons for the inability to meet this date.



The notification which shall be submitted by the Permittee does require a certification that meets the requirements of 326 IAC 276(1) by a "responsible official" as defined by 326 IAC 271(35).



[bookmark: _Toc138065790][bookmark: _Toc169701354]C.11	Instrument Specifications [326 IAC 21.111] [326 IAC 275(3)] [326 IAC 276(1)] 

(a)	When required by any condition of this permit, an analog instrument used to measure a parameter related to the operation of an air pollution control device shall have a scale such that the expected maximum reading for the normal range shall be no less than twenty percent (20%) of full scale.  The analog instrument shall be capable of measuring values outside of the normal range.  



(b)	The Permittee may request that the IDEM, OAQ approve the use of an instrument that does not meet the above specifications provided the Permittee can demonstrate that an alternative instrument specification will adequately ensure compliance with permit conditions requiring the measurement of the parameters.



[bookmark: _Toc138065791][bookmark: _Toc169701355]Corrective Actions and Response Steps [326 IAC 275][326 IAC 276]

[bookmark: _Toc138065792][bookmark: _Toc169701356]C.12	Emergency Reduction Plans [326 IAC 152] [326 IAC 153]

Pursuant to 326 IAC 152 (Emergency Reduction Plans; Submission):



(a)	The Permittee shall maintain the most recently submitted written emergency reduction plans (ERPs) consistent with safe operating procedures.



(b)	Upon direct notification by IDEM, OAQ that a specific air pollution episode level is in effect, the Permittee shall immediately put into effect the actions stipulated in the approved ERP for the appropriate episode level. [326 IAC 153]



[bookmark: _Toc138065793][bookmark: _Toc169701357]C.13	Risk Management Plan [326 IAC 275(11)] [40 CFR 68]

If a regulated substance, as defined in 40 CFR 68, is present at a source in more than a threshold quantity, the Permittee must comply with the applicable requirements of 40 CFR 68.



[bookmark: _Toc138065794][bookmark: _Toc169701358]C.14	Response to Excursions or Exceedances [326 IAC 275] [326 IAC 276]

Upon detecting an excursion where a response step is required by the D Section or an exceedance of a limitation in this permit:



(a)	The Permittee shall take reasonable response steps to restore operation of the emissions unit (including any control device and associated capture system) to its normal or usual manner of operation as expeditiously as practicable in accordance with good air pollution control practices for minimizing excess emissions.



(b) 	The response shall include minimizing the period of any startup, shutdown or malfunction. The response may include, but is not limited to, the following:



(1)	initial inspection and evaluation;



(2)	recording that operations returned or are returning to normal without operator action (such as through response by a computerized distribution control system); or



(3)	any necessary follow-up actions to return operation to normal or usual manner of operation. 



(c)	A determination of whether the Permittee has used acceptable procedures in response to an excursion or exceedance will be based on information available, which may include, but is not limited to, the following:



(1)	monitoring results;



(2)	review of operation and maintenance procedures and records; and/or



(3)	inspection of the control device, associated capture system, and the process.



(d)	Failure to take reasonable response steps shall be considered a deviation from the permit.



(e)	The Permittee shall record the reasonable response steps taken.



[bookmark: _Toc138065795][bookmark: _Toc169701359]C.15	Actions Related to Noncompliance Demonstrated by a Stack Test [326 IAC 275][326 IAC 276]

(a)	When the results of a stack test performed in conformance with Section C - Performance Testing, of this permit exceed the level specified in any condition of this permit, the Permittee shall submit a description of its response actions to IDEM, OAQ no later than seventy-five (75) days after the date of the test.



(b)	A retest to demonstrate compliance shall be performed no later than one hundred eighty (180) days after the date of the test.  Should the Permittee demonstrate to IDEM, OAQ that retesting in one hundred eighty (180) days is not practicable, IDEM, OAQ may extend the retesting deadline.



(c)	IDEM, OAQ reserves the authority to take any actions allowed under law in response to noncompliant stack tests.



The response action documents submitted pursuant to this condition do require a certification that meets the requirements of 326 IAC 276(1) by a "responsible official" as defined by 326 IAC 271(35).



[bookmark: _Toc138065796][bookmark: _Toc169701360]Record Keeping and Reporting Requirements [326 IAC 275(3)] [326 IAC 2719]

[bookmark: _Toc138065797][bookmark: _Toc169701361]C.16	Emission Statement [326 IAC 275(3)(C)(iii)][326 IAC 275(7)][326 IAC 2719(c)][326 IAC 26]

Pursuant to 326 IAC 263(b)(1), starting in 2004 and every three (3) years thereafter, the Permittee shall submit by July 1 an emission statement covering the previous calendar year.  The emission statement shall contain, at a minimum, the information specified in 326 IAC 264(c) and shall meet the following requirements:



(1)	Indicate estimated actual emissions of all pollutants listed in 326 IAC 264(a);



(2)	Indicate estimated actual emissions of regulated pollutants as defined by 326 IAC 271(33) (“Regulated pollutant, which is used only for purposes of Section 19 of this rule”) from the source, for purpose of fee assessment.



The statement must be submitted to:



Indiana Department of Environmental Management

Technical Support and Modeling Section, Office of Air Quality

100 North Senate Avenue

MC 6150 IGCN 1003

Indianapolis, Indiana 462042251



The emission statement does require a certification that meets the requirements of 326 IAC 276(1) by a "responsible official" as defined by 326 IAC 271(35).



[bookmark: _Toc138065798][bookmark: _Toc169701362]C.17	General Record Keeping Requirements [326 IAC 275(3)] [326 IAC 276] 

(a)	Records of all required monitoring data, reports and support information required by this permit shall be retained for a period of at least five (5) years from the date of monitoring sample, measurement, report, or application. Support information includes the following, where applicable: 

(AA)	All calibration and maintenance records.

(BB) 	All original strip chart recordings for continuous monitoring instrumentation.

(CC) 	Copies of all reports required by the Part 70 permit. 

Records of required monitoring information include the following, where applicable:

(AA) 	The date, place, as defined in this permit, and time of sampling or measurements.

(BB) 	The dates analyses were performed.

(CC) 	The company or entity that performed the analyses.

(DD) 	The analytical techniques or methods used.

(EE) 	The results of such analyses.

(FF) 	The operating conditions as existing at the time of sampling or measurement.

These records shall be physically present or electronically accessible at the source location for a minimum of three (3) years.  The records may be stored elsewhere for the remaining two (2) years as long as they are available upon request.  If the Commissioner makes a request for records to the Permittee, the Permittee shall furnish the records to the Commissioner within a reasonable time.



(b)	Unless otherwise specified in this permit, for all record keeping requirements not already legally required, the Permittee shall be allowed up to ninety (90) days from the date of permit issuance or the date of initial start-up, whichever is later, to begin such record keeping.



[bookmark: _Toc138065799][bookmark: _Toc169701363]C.18	General Reporting Requirements [326 IAC 275(3)(C)] [326 IAC 21.111]  

(a)	The Permittee shall submit the attached Quarterly Deviation and Compliance Monitoring Report or its equivalent. Proper notice submittal under Section B - Emergency Provisions satisfies the reporting requirements of this paragraph. Any deviation from permit requirements, the date(s) of each deviation, the cause of the deviation, and the response steps taken must be reported except that a deviation required to be reported pursuant to an applicable requirement that exists independent of this permit, shall be reported according to the schedule stated in the applicable requirement and does not need to be included in this report. This report shall be submitted not later than thirty (30) days after the end of the reporting period. The Quarterly Deviation and Compliance Monitoring Report shall include a certification that meets the requirements of 326 IAC 276(1) by a "responsible official" as defined by 326 IAC 271(35). A deviation is an exceedance of a permit limitation or a failure to comply with a requirement of the permit.



(b)	The address for report submittal is: 



Indiana Department of Environmental Management

Compliance and Enforcement Branch, Office of Air Quality

100 North Senate Avenue

MC 6153 IGCN 1003

Indianapolis, Indiana 462042251



(c)	Unless otherwise specified in this permit, any notice, report, or other submission required by this permit shall be considered timely if the date postmarked on the envelope or certified mail receipt, or affixed by the shipper on the private shipping receipt, is on or before the date it is due.  If the document is submitted by any other means, it shall be considered timely if received by IDEM, OAQ on or before the date it is due.



(d)	Reporting periods are based on calendar years, unless otherwise specified in this permit.  For the purpose of this permit “calendar year” means the twelve (12) month period from January 1 to December 31 inclusive.



[bookmark: _Toc138065800][bookmark: _Toc169701364]Stratospheric Ozone Protection

[bookmark: _Toc138065801][bookmark: _Toc169701365]C.19	Compliance with 40 CFR 82 and 326 IAC 221 

Pursuant to 40 CFR 82 (Protection of Stratospheric Ozone), Subpart F, except as provided for motor vehicle air conditioners in Subpart B, the Permittee shall comply with applicable standards for recycling and emissions reduction.




[bookmark: _Toc138065802][bookmark: _Toc169701366]SECTION D.1	EMISSIONS UNIT OPERATION CONDITIONS

		Emissions Unit Description:

(c)	One (1) open landfill gas flare, constructed in 2014, identified as EU-4, with an approximate heat input of 91.26 MMBtu/hr and a maximum landfill gas flow of 3,000 SCFM, controlling VOC and HAP emissions from the MSW landfill.

[40 CFR 62, Subpart OOO] [40 CFR 63, Subpart AAAA]



(The information describing the process contained in this emissions unit description box is descriptive information and does not constitute enforceable conditions.)







[bookmark: _Toc138065803][bookmark: _Toc169701367]Emission Limitations and Standards [326 IAC 275(1)]

[bookmark: _Toc473629443][bookmark: _Toc26948239][bookmark: _Toc138065804][bookmark: _Toc169701368]D.1.1	Prevention of Significant Deterioration (PSD) Minor Limit [326 IAC 2-2]	 

In order to render the requirements of 326 IAC 2-2 (Prevention of Significant Deterioration (PSD)) not applicable to the 2014 Modification permitted under SSM No. 003-34309-00257, the Permittee shall comply with the following:



(a)	Landfill gas combusted in the open flare, identified as EU-4, shall not exceed 732,095 MMBtu per twelve (12) consecutive month period with compliance determined at the end of each month;



(b)	Carbon monoxide (CO) emissions from the open flare, identified as EU-4, shall not exceed 0.37 lb/MMBtu; and



(c)	Volatile Organic Compound (VOC) emissions from the open flare, identified as EU-4, shall not exceed 0.14 lb/MMBtu.



Compliance with these limits, along with CO and VOC emission limitations on open flare EU-2 at the United Refuse Landfill, shall limit the net emissions increase of CO from the 2014 Modification to less than one hundred (100) tons per twelve (12) consecutive month period, and the net emissions increase of VOC to less than forty (40) tons per twelve (12) consecutive month period, and shall render the requirements of 326 IAC 2-2 (Prevention of Significant Deterioration (PSD)) not applicable to the 2014 Modification permitted under SSM No. 003-34309-00257.



[bookmark: _Toc460576849][bookmark: _Toc465841655][bookmark: _Toc473629447][bookmark: _Toc26948243][bookmark: _Toc138065805][bookmark: _Toc169701369]D.1.2	Preventive Maintenance Plan [326 IAC 2-7-5(12)]

A Preventive Maintenance Plan is required for this facility and its control devices.  Section B – Preventive Maintenance Plan contains the Permittee’s obligation with regard to the preventive maintenance plans required by this condition. 



[bookmark: _Toc138065806][bookmark: _Toc169701370]Compliance Determination Requirements [326 IAC 275(1)]

[bookmark: _Toc473629449][bookmark: _Toc26948245][bookmark: _Toc138065807][bookmark: _Toc169701371]D.1.3	Landfill Gas Calculations

(a)	In order to determine the compliance status with Condition D.1.1(a), the Permittee shall calculate the heat input to flare EU-4 on a monthly basis using the following equations:



Heat Input (MMBtu this month) = 	Landfill Gas Combusted (MMCF this month) x 
% by volume methane in landfill gas x 
896 MMBtu/MMCF (the net heating value of pure methane in 40 CFR 63, Subpart CC, Appendix, Table 12)



Heat Input (MMBtu per 12 months) = 	Heat Input (MMBtu this month) + Heat Input (MMBtu last eleven (11) months)



(b)	In order to determine the compliance status with Condition D.1.1(a), the Permittee shall measure the methane content, in % by volume, of the landfill gas collected by the active landfill gas collection and control system at least once per month using a portable analyzer.



[bookmark: _Toc138065808][bookmark: _Toc169701372]Record Keeping and Reporting Requirements [326 IAC 275(3)] [326 IAC 2719]

[bookmark: _Toc473629452][bookmark: _Toc26948248][bookmark: _Toc138065809][bookmark: _Toc169701373]D.1.4	Record Keeping Requirements

(a)	To document the compliance status with Condition D.1.1(a) and Condition D.1.3(a), the Permittee shall maintain a monthly record of the amount of landfill gas combusted in MMCF in flare EU-4.



(b)	To document the compliance status with Condition D.1.1(a) and Condition D.1.3(a), the Permittee shall maintain a monthly record of the calculated heat input to landfill gas control flare EU-4.



(c)	To document the compliance status with Condition D.1.1(a) and Condition D.1.3(b), the Permittee shall measure and maintain a monthly record of the methane content of landfill gas combusted in the landfill gas control flare EU-4 using a portable analyzer.



(d)	Section C – General Record Keeping Requirements contains the Permittee’s obligations with regard to the record keeping required by this condition.



[bookmark: _Toc473629453][bookmark: _Toc26948249][bookmark: _Toc138065810][bookmark: _Toc169701374]D.1.5	Reporting Requirements

A quarterly summary of the information to document the compliance status with Condition D.1.1(a) shall be submitted using the reporting form located at the end of this permit, or its equivalent, not later than thirty (30) days after the end of the quarter being reported.  Section C - General Reporting contains the Permittee's obligation with regard to the reporting required by this condition.  The report submitted by the Permittee does require a certification that meets the requirements of 326 IAC 2-7-6(1) by a “responsible official” as defined by 326 IAC 2-7-1(35).



[bookmark: _Toc138065811][bookmark: _Toc169701375]SECTION D.2	EMISSIONS UNIT OPERATION CONDITIONS

		Specifically Regulated Insignificant Activities:

(a)	Three (3) parts washers with a combined solvent consumption of 240 gallons per year, constructed after 1990. 



(The information describing the process contained in this emissions unit description box is descriptive information and does not constitute enforceable conditions.)







[bookmark: _Toc138065812][bookmark: _Toc169701376]Emission Limitations and Standards [326 IAC 275(1)]

[bookmark: _Toc138065813][bookmark: _Toc169701377][bookmark: _Hlk74310112]D.2.1	Cold Cleaner Degreaser Control Equipment and Operating Requirements [326 IAC 8-3-2]

Pursuant to 326 IAC 832 (Cold Cleaner Degreaser Control Equipment and Operating Requirements), the Permittee shall:



(a)	Comply with the following control equipment and operating requirements:



(1)	Equip the degreaser with a cover.



(2)	Equip the degreaser with a device for draining cleaned parts.



(3)	Close the degreaser cover whenever parts are not being handled in the degreaser.



(4)	Drain cleaned parts for at least fifteen (15) seconds or until dripping ceases;



(5)	Provide a permanent, conspicuous label that lists the operating requirements in subdivisions (3), (4), (6), and (7).



(6)	Store waste solvent only in closed containers.



(7)	Prohibit the disposal or transfer of waste solvent in a manner that would allow greater than twenty percent (20%) of the waste solvent (by weight) to evaporate into the atmosphere.



(b)	Comply with the following additional control equipment and operating requirements:



(1) 	Equip the degreaser with one (1) of the following control devices if the solvent is heated to a temperature of greater than forty-eight and nine-tenths (48.9) degrees Celsius (one hundred twenty (120) degrees Fahrenheit):



(A)	A freeboard that attains a freeboard ratio of seventy-five hundredths (0.75) or greater.

(B)	A water cover when solvent used is insoluble in, and heavier than, water.

(C)	A refrigerated chiller.

(D)	Carbon adsorption.



(2)	Ensure the degreaser cover is designed so that it can be easily operated with one (1) hand if the solvent is agitated or heated.



(3)	If used, solvent spray must be:



(A)	performed in an enclosed chamber, with or without venting; or

(B)	a solid, fluid stream applied at a pressure that does not cause excessive splashing.



[bookmark: _Toc138065814][bookmark: _Toc169701378]D.2.2	Material Requirements for Cold Cleaner Degreasers [326 IAC 8-3-8]

Pursuant to 326 IAC 8-3-8 (Material Requirements for Cold Cleaner Degreasers), the Permittee shall not operate a cold cleaning degreaser with a solvent that has a VOC composite partial vapor pressure that exceeds one (1) millimeter of mercury (nineteen-thousandths (0.019) pound per square inch) measured at twenty (20) degrees Celsius (sixty-eight (68) degrees Fahrenheit).



[bookmark: _Toc138065815][bookmark: _Toc169701379]D.2.3	Preventive Maintenance Plan [326 IAC 2-7-5(12)] 

A Preventive Maintenance Plan is required for these facilities and their control devices.  Section B - Preventive Maintenance Plan contains the Permittee's obligation with regard to the preventive maintenance plan required by this condition.



[bookmark: _Toc138065816][bookmark: _Toc169701380]Record Keeping and Reporting Requirements [326 IAC 275(3)] [326 IAC 2719]

[bookmark: _Toc138065817][bookmark: _Toc169701381]D.2.4	Record Keeping Requirements

(a)	To document the compliance status with Condition D.2.2, the Permittee shall maintain the following records for each purchase of solvent used in the cold cleaner degreasing operations.  These records must be retained on-site or accessible electronically for the most recent three (3) year period and shall be reasonably accessible for an additional two (2) year period.



(1)	The name and address of the solvent supplier.



(2)	The date of purchase (or invoice/bill dates of contract servicer indicating service date).



(3)	The type of solvent purchased.



(4)	The total volume of the solvent purchased.



(5)	The true vapor pressure of the solvent measured in millimeters of mercury at twenty (20) degrees Celsius (sixty-eight (68) degrees Fahrenheit).



(b)	Section C - General Record Keeping Requirements contains the Permittee's obligations with regard to the records required by this condition.

[bookmark: _Toc138065818][bookmark: _Toc169701382]
SECTION D.3	EMISSIONS UNIT OPERATION CONDITIONS

		Specifically Regulated Insignificant Activity:

(c)	One (1) solidification process used to solidify non-hazardous liquid commercial wastes including liquids from restaurant grease traps and oily liquids from car washes. 



(The information describing the process contained in this emissions unit description box is descriptive information and does not constitute enforceable conditions.)







[bookmark: _Toc138065819][bookmark: _Toc169701383]Emission Limitations and Standards [326 IAC 275(1)]

[bookmark: _Toc138065820][bookmark: _Toc169701384]D.3.1	Particulate Emission Limitations [326 IAC 6-3-2]

Pursuant to 326 IAC 6-3-2 (Particulate Emission Limitations for Manufacturing Processes), particulate emissions from the welding facility shall not exceed 13.50 pounds per hour when operating at a process weight rate of 5.92 tons per hour.



The pounds per hour limitation was calculated with the following equation:



Interpolation of the data for the process weight rate up to 60,000 pounds per hour shall be accomplished by use of the equation:



E = 4.10 P0.67 		



Where 		E = rate of emission in pounds per hour; and

		P = process weight rate in tons per hour



[bookmark: _Toc138065821][bookmark: _Toc169701385]D.3.2	Preventive Maintenance Plan [326 IAC 2-7-5(12)]

A Preventive Maintenance Plan is required for this facility and its control devices.   Section B - Preventive Maintenance Plan contains the Permittee's obligation with regard to the preventive maintenance plan required by this condition.



[bookmark: _Toc138065822][bookmark: _Toc169701386]SECTION D.4	EMISSIONS UNIT OPERATION CONDITIONS

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







[bookmark: _Toc138065823][bookmark: _Toc169701387]Emission Limitations and Standards [326 IAC 275(1)]

[bookmark: _Toc138065824][bookmark: _Toc169701388]D.4.1	Federal Standards Applicable to Certain Municipal Solid Waste Landfills [326 IAC 8-8.2]

[bookmark: _Hlk131587635]Pursuant to 326 IAC 8-8.2-1, the Permittee is subject to the applicable requirements under 40 CFR 62, Subpart OOO (July 1, 2021 Edition, as amended by 87 FR 8203), except for the following authorities are not delegated to the state:



(a)	Approval of alternative methods to determine the nonmethane organic compounds concentration or a site-specific nonmethane generation rate constant k as provided in 40 CFR 62.16718(a)(5).



(b)	Alternative emission standards.



(c)	Major alternatives to test methods or monitoring that make modifications to a federally enforceable test method or to a federal monitoring requirement. These changes may involve the use of unproven technology or modified procedures or an entirely new method.



(d)	Waiver of record keeping.



[bookmark: _Toc77235955][bookmark: _Toc138065825][bookmark: _Toc169701389]D.4.2	Preventive Maintenance Plan  [326 IAC 2-7-5(12)]

A Preventive Maintenance Plan is required for these facilities and their control devices.  Section B - Preventive Maintenance Plan contains the Permittee's obligation with regard to the preventive maintenance plan required by this condition.  



[bookmark: _Toc138065826][bookmark: _Toc169701390]SECTION E.1	Federal Plan

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







[bookmark: _Toc138065827][bookmark: _Toc169701391]Federal Plan Requirements [326 IAC 275(1)]

[bookmark: _Toc138065828][bookmark: _Toc169701392]E.1.1	General Provisions Relating to New Source Performance Standards [326 IAC 121] [40 CFR Part 60, Subpart A]

(a)	Pursuant to 40 CFR 60.1, the Permittee shall comply with the provisions of 40 CFR Part 60, Subpart A – General Provisions, which are incorporated by reference as 326 IAC 121, for the emission unit(s) listed above, except as otherwise specified in 40 CFR Part 62, Subparts A and OOO.



(b)	Pursuant to 40 CFR 60.4, the Permittee shall submit all required notifications and reports to:



Indiana Department of Environmental Management

Compliance and Enforcement Branch, Office of Air Quality

100 North Senate Avenue

MC 6153 IGCN 1003

Indianapolis, Indiana 462042251



[bookmark: _Toc138065829][bookmark: _Toc169701393]E.1.2	Federal Plan Requirements for Municipal Solid Waste Landfills That Commenced Construction On or Before July 17, 2014 and Have Not Been Modified or Reconstructed Since July 17, 2014 [40 CFR Part 62, Subpart OOO] 

The Permittee shall comply with the following provisions of 40 CFR Part 62, Subpart OOO (included as Attachment C to the operating permit), for the emission unit(s) listed above:



(1)	40 CFR 62.16710

(2)	40 CFR 62.16711(a), (d) - (f), (h)

(3)	40 CFR 62.16714(a)(1) - (3), (b)(1)(ii), (b)(2), (c)(1), (c)(3), (c)(4), (f)

(4)	40 CFR 62.16718(b), (c), (d)(1)

(5)	40 CFR 62.16724(d), (e) - (g), (j) - (l), (q)

(6)	40 CFR 62.16726(a), (b)(1), (b)(4), (b)(5), (c)(2), (c)(4), (c)(5), (d), (e)(6), (h) - (j)

(7)	40 CFR 62.16728

(8)	40 CFR 62.16730



[bookmark: _Toc138065830][bookmark: _Toc169701394]SECTION E.2	NESHAP

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







[bookmark: _Toc138065831][bookmark: _Toc169701395]National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants (NESHAP) Requirements [326 IAC 275(1)]

[bookmark: _Toc138065832][bookmark: _Toc169701396]E.2.1	General Provisions Relating to National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants under 40 CFR Part 61 [326 IAC 141] [40 CFR Part 61, Subpart A]

(a)	Pursuant to 40 CFR 61.1 the Permittee shall comply with the provisions of 40 CFR Part 61, Subpart A – General Provisions, which are incorporated by reference as 326 IAC 141, for the emission unit(s) listed above, except as otherwise specified in 40 CFR Part 61, Subpart M.



(b)	Pursuant to 40 CFR 63.10, the Permittee shall submit all required notifications and reports to:



Indiana Department of Environmental Management

Compliance and Enforcement Branch, Office of Air Quality

100 North Senate Avenue

MC 6153 IGCN 1003

Indianapolis, Indiana 462042251



[bookmark: _Toc138065833][bookmark: _Toc169701397]E.2.2	National Emission Standards for Asbestos NESHAP [40 CFR Part 61, Subpart M] [326 IAC 14-2] 

The Permittee shall comply with the following provisions of 40 CFR Part 61, Subpart M (included as Attachment D to the operating permit), which are incorporated by reference as 326 IAC 14-2, for the emission unit(s) listed above:



(1)	40 CFR 61.140

(2)	40 CFR 61.141

(3)	40 CFR 61.153

(4)	40 CFR 61.154

(5)	40 CFR 61.156, Table 1

(6)	40 CFR 61.157



[bookmark: _Toc138065834][bookmark: _Toc169701398]SECTION E.3	NESHAP

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







[bookmark: _Toc138065835][bookmark: _Toc169701399]National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants (NESHAP) Requirements [326 IAC 275(1)]

[bookmark: _Toc138065836][bookmark: _Toc169701400]E.3.1	General Provisions Relating to National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants under 40 CFR Part 63 [326 IAC 201] [40 CFR Part 63, Subpart A]

(a)	Pursuant to 40 CFR 63.1 the Permittee shall comply with the provisions of 40 CFR Part 63, Subpart A – General Provisions, which are incorporated by reference as 326 IAC 201, for the emission unit(s) listed above, except as otherwise specified in 40 CFR Part 63, Subpart AAAA.



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



[bookmark: _Toc138065837][bookmark: _Toc169701401]E.3.2	National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants: Municipal Solid Waste Landfills NESHAP [40 CFR Part 63, Subpart AAAA] [326 IAC 2067] 

The Permittee shall comply with the following provisions of 40 CFR Part 63, Subpart AAAA (included as Attachment E to the operating permit), which are incorporated by reference as 326 IAC 2067, for the emission unit(s) listed above:



(1)	40 CFR 63.1930

(2)	40 CFR 63.1935(a)(3)

(3)	40 CFR 63.1940(a) and (b)

(4)	40 CFR 63.1945(a)

(5)	40 CFR 63.1950

(6)	40 CFR 63.1955(a) and (c)

(7)	40 CFR 63.1957

(8)	40 CFR 63.1958

(9)	40 CFR 63.1959(b)(2)(ii) and (iii), (c), (e)(1), (f) 

(10)	40 CFR 63.1960

(11)	40 CFR 63.1961(a), (c), (f) - (h)

(12)	40 CFR 63.1962

(13)	40 CFR 63.1964

(14)	40 CFR 63.1965

(15)	40 CFR 63.1975

(16)	40 CFR 63.1981(e) - (h), (j) - (n)

(17)	40 CFR 63.1983(a) - (e), (g) - (i)

(18)	40 CFR 63.1985

(19)	40 CFR 63.1990

(20)	Table 1 to Subpart AAAA



[bookmark: _Toc138065838][bookmark: _Toc169701402]E.3.3	Operational Standards for Collection and Control Systems [40 CFR 63.1958] [326 IAC 20-67]

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



		C18R

		65.6

		150



		C24R

		65.6

		150



		C30

		65.6

		150



		C38R

		71.1

		160



		C39R2

		71.1

		160



		C40B

		68.3

		155



		C40R

		65.6

		150



		C41R2

		71.1

		160



		C42R2

		71.1

		160



		C44R2

		65.6

		150



		C46R2

		65.6

		150



		C47R2

		65.6

		150



		C48R2

		65.6

		150



		C49R2

		65.6

		150



		C51A

		68.3

		155



		C52

		65.6

		150



		C52A

		68.3

		155



		C53R

		71.1

		160



		C56

		65.6

		150



		C57

		65.6

		150



		C57A

		68.3

		155



		C59R

		65.6

		150



		C69

		71.1

		160



		D61A

		71.1

		160



		D66

		65.6

		150



		D67

		65.6

		150



		D69

		65.6

		150



		D74

		65.6

		150



		D100A

		65.6

		150



		D101B

		68.3

		155



		D123A

		68.3

		155



		D126

		68.3

		155



		D139

		71.1

		160



		C43R2

		71.1

		160



		D100B

		71.1

		160



		D153

		71.1

		160



		D169

		71.1

		160












INDIANA DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT

OFFICE OF AIR QUALITY

COMPLIANCE AND ENFORCEMENT BRANCH

PART 70 OPERATING PERMIT

[bookmark: _Toc138065839][bookmark: _Toc169701403]CERTIFICATION



Source Name: 	Republic Services of Indiana LP dba National Serv-All Landfill

Source Address:	6231 MacBeth Road, Fort Wayne, Indiana 46809

Part 70 Permit No.:	T0034427000257



		

This certification shall be included when submitting monitoring, testing reports/results 

or other documents as required by this permit.



Please check what document is being certified:



  Annual Compliance Certification Letter



  Test Result (specify) ___________________________________________________________



  Report (specify) _______________________________________________________________



  Notification (specify) ___________________________________________________________



  Affidavit (specify) ______________________________________________________________



  Other (specify) ________________________________________________________________









		

I certify that, based on information and belief formed after reasonable inquiry, the statements and information in the document are true, accurate, and complete.



		Signature:



		Printed Name:



		Title/Position:



		Phone:



		Date:






INDIANA DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT

OFFICE OF AIR QUALITY 

COMPLIANCE AND ENFORCEMENT BRANCH

100 North Senate Avenue

MC 6153 IGCN 1003

Indianapolis, Indiana 462042251

Phone: (317) 2330178

Fax: (317) 2336865





PART 70 OPERATING PERMIT

[bookmark: _Toc138065840][bookmark: _Toc169701404]EMERGENCY OCCURRENCE REPORT



Source Name: 	Republic Services of Indiana LP dba National Serv-All Landfill

Source Address:	6231 MacBeth Road, Fort Wayne, Indiana 46809

Part 70 Permit No.:	T0034427000257



This form consists of 2 pages								Page 1 of 2

		

  This is an emergency as defined in 326 IAC 271(12)

· The Permittee must notify the Office of Air Quality (OAQ), within four (4) daytime business hours (18004516027 or 3172330178, ask for Compliance Section); and

· The Permittee must submit notice in writing or by facsimile within two (2) working days (Facsimile Number: 3172336865), and follow the other requirements of 326 IAC 2716.







If any of the following are not applicable, mark N/A

		

Facility/Equipment/Operation:









		

Control Equipment:









		

Permit Condition or Operation Limitation in Permit:









		

Description of the Emergency:









		

Describe the cause of the Emergency: 












If any of the following are not applicable, mark N/A					Page 2 of 2

		

Date/Time Emergency started:





		

Date/Time Emergency was corrected:





		

Was the facility being properly operated at the time of the emergency?		Y	N

Describe:







		

Type of Pollutants Emitted: TSP, PM-10, SO2, VOC, NOX, CO, Pb, other:





		

Estimated amount of pollutant(s) emitted during emergency:







		

Describe the steps taken to mitigate the problem:









		

Describe the corrective actions/response steps taken:









		

Describe the measures taken to minimize emissions:









		

If applicable, describe the reasons why continued operation of the facilities are necessary to prevent imminent injury to persons, severe damage to equipment, substantial loss of capital investment, or loss of product or raw materials of substantial economic value:



















Form Completed by:	



Title / Position:	



Date:	



Phone:	






INDIANA DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT

OFFICE OF AIR QUALITY 

COMPLIANCE AND ENFORCEMENT BRANCH



[bookmark: _Toc138065841][bookmark: _Toc169701405]Part 70 Quarterly Report



Source Name: 	Republic Services of Indiana LP dba National Serv-All Landfill

Source Address:	6231 MacBeth Road, Fort Wayne, Indiana 46809

Part 70 Permit No.:	T0034427000257

Facility:	Open Flare EU-4

Parameter:	Landfill Gas Combustion

Limit:	Landfill gas combusted in the open flare, identified as EU-4, shall not exceed 732,095 MMBtu per twelve (12) consecutive month period with compliance determined at the end of each month.



QUARTER:_____________________	YEAR:_____________________



		Month

		Column 1

		Column 2

		Column 1 + Column 2



		

		Landfill Gas Combustion

(MMBtu)

		Landfill Gas Combustion

(MMBtu)

		Landfill Gas Combustion

(MMBtu)



		

		This Month

		Previous 11 Months

		12 Month Total



		

		

		

		



		

		

		

		



		

		

		

		







	No deviation occurred in this quarter.

	Deviation/s occurred in this quarter.

Deviation has been reported on:	



Submitted by:	



Title / Position:	



Signature:	



Date:	



Phone:	




INDIANA DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT

OFFICE OF AIR QUALITY 

COMPLIANCE AND ENFORCEMENT BRANCH

PART 70 OPERATING PERMIT

[bookmark: _Toc138065842][bookmark: _Toc169701406]QUARTERLY DEVIATION AND COMPLIANCE MONITORING REPORT



Source Name: 	Republic Services of Indiana LP dba National Serv-All Landfill

Source Address:	6231 MacBeth Road, Fort Wayne, Indiana 46809

Part 70 Permit No.:	T0034427000257



Months: ___________ to  ____________  Year:  ______________



Page 1 of 2

		

This report shall be submitted quarterly based on a calendar year.  Proper notice submittal under Section B - Emergency Provisions satisfies the reporting requirements of paragraph (a) of Section C-General Reporting. Any deviation from the requirements of this permit, the date(s) of each deviation, the probable cause of the deviation, and the response steps taken must be reported. A deviation required to be reported pursuant to an applicable requirement that exists independent of the permit, shall be reported according to the schedule stated in the applicable requirement and does not need to be included in this report.  Additional pages may be attached if necessary.  If no deviations occurred, please specify in the box marked "No deviations occurred this reporting period".



		

  NO DEVIATIONS OCCURRED THIS REPORTING PERIOD.



		

  THE FOLLOWING DEVIATIONS OCCURRED THIS REPORTING PERIOD



		

Permit Requirement (specify permit condition #)



		

Date of Deviation:

		

Duration of Deviation:



		

Number of Deviations:



		

Probable Cause of Deviation:





		

Response Steps Taken:





		

Permit Requirement (specify permit condition #)



		

Date of Deviation:

		

Duration of Deviation:



		

Number of Deviations:



		

Probable Cause of Deviation:





		

Response Steps Taken:










Page 2 of 2

		

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

Subject: RE: Applicant Review for Part 70 Administrative Amendment No. 003-47946-00257 for Republic Services of
Indiana LP dba National Serv-All Landfill

Date: Wednesday, June 26, 2024 10:20:50 AM

Attachments: image003.png

**** This is an EXTERNAL email. Exercise caution. DO NOT open attachments or
click links from unknown senders or unexpected email. ****

Received.

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

R |
L mecuar

Sustainability in Action

From: Tamburrino, Victoria <VTamburr@idem.IN.gov>

Sent: Wednesday, June 26, 2024 9:50 AM

To: Kristen Schneider <kschneider@eilllc.com>; Goodman, Stephanie
<SGoodman@republicservices.com>

Subject: Applicant Review for Part 70 Administrative Amendment No. 003-47946-00257 for Republic
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


https://us-phishalarm-ewt.proofpoint.com/EWT/v1/C_YaKJ7Yefs70IFr!_wNqYOkOwfeEGkVr3m-F65w0opz783rMdtbl3Eyt4vZP2J0G1hZs6HG4yhyXalbD0YqF_80heLsIhoiW5dowUxu9cqMeAFz-ToRQDVkB2nITxEWWBaJQF8132D8nuEacDWnhd0rsVf6VdYJIooc$
mailto:SGoodman@republicservices.com
mailto:VTamburr@idem.IN.gov
mailto:kschneider@eilllc.com
mailto:sgoodman@republicservices.com
http://republicservices.com/

Help us improve!
IDEM values your feedback




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

[ $0 | example: TV/FESOP/SSOA Administrative Amendment

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


https://urldefense.com/v3/__http:/www.in.gov/idem/__;!!C_YaKJ7Yefs70IFr!iTckMh56c3IR8iexOY8HAf0xYjaF0VIDO2PEYS5sABLZi86NG7POXBIlZOi62QpxdH_6zj7SH770zqJbXDMm62OZMuxr$
mailto:vtamburr@idem.in.gov
https://urldefense.com/v3/__https:/www.surveymonkey.com/r/idemcustserva__;!!C_YaKJ7Yefs70IFr!iTckMh56c3IR8iexOY8HAf0xYjaF0VIDO2PEYS5sABLZi86NG7POXBIlZOi62QpxdH_6zj7SH770zqJbXDMm653qSCyW$

From: Goodman, Stephanie

To: Tamburrino, Victoria; Kristen Schneider

Cc: Iniemann

Subject: RE: Applicant Review for Part 70 Administrative Amendment No. 003-47946-00257 for Republic Services of
Indiana LP dba National Serv-All Landfill

Date: Thursday, June 27, 2024 9:58:54 AM

Attachments: image003.png

**** This is an EXTERNAL email. Exercise caution. DO NOT open attachments or
click links from unknown senders or unexpected email. ****

National Servall does NOT have any comments on this permit administrative amendment.
Thank you for the opportunity to review.

Regards,

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
oL p necuai

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
mailto:lniemann@eilllc.com
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

BILLING WORKSHEET

TV Permits
For Applications Received On and After October 1, 2019

Permit #: 003-47946-00257
Permit Reviewer: Tori Tamburrino
Application Received Date: 12-Jun-24

Instructions: Permit Reviewers will fill out yellow-highlighted cells (as necessary) and check the appropriate box or fill in the number of reviews.
The total fee will be calculated at the bottom and transferred to the billing amount on the first page. Permit Reviewers will change the bottom
worksheet tab color to yellow to indicate the permit billing worksheet that was filled out. PASS staff will fill out the green-highlighted cells (as
necessary).

TV Fees

$793 | TV MSM (45)

$5,556 TV NSC (Minor PSD/EQ) (120)

(
$9,525 | TV NSC (Major PSD/EO) (270)
$5,556 | TV SSM (Minor PSD/EO) (120)

| ..

$9,525 TV SSM (Major PSD/EQ) (270)

Note: See "Transition scenarios - permits and fees" document located in SharePoint for more information on handling transition permits and
associated fees.

NSPS / NESHAP / 326 IAC 8-1-6 BACT / 326 IAC 2-4.1 MACT Review

Number of Total
Reviews Fee Fee See "NSPS-NESHAP-BACT Billing Info" document for instructions

$793 for each review for an applicable NSPS

$793 for each review for an applicable NESHAP

$952 times each 326 |IAC 8-1-6 BACT and each 326 IAC 2-4.1 MACT

For each best available control technology (BACT) analysis for VOC under 326 IAC 8-1-6 and for each maximum achievable control
technology (MACT) under 326 IAC 2-4.1. [326 IAC 2-1.1-7(m)(5)]

Other Fees
L] $793 Interim — Any type
L] $793 Public Hearing

PSD BACT or LAER Review

L] $4,762 2 to 5 Review Analyses
L] $9,525 6 to 10 Review Analyses
L] $15,875 11 or more Review Analyses

Fees for BACT under 326 IAC 2-2-3 or LAER under 326 IAC 2-3-3 are per pollutant and per emissions unit or group of identical emissions
units for which a control technology analysis is required. [326 IAC 2-1.1-7(m)(2)]

Air Quality Impact Study Review

Number of Total Fee
Pollutants Fee

$9,525 per pollutant if OAQ does the analysis

L] $5,556 if applicant does the analysis (not dependent on number of pollutants)

Plantwide Applicability Limitation (PAL)

PAL
Pollutants Total Instructions: enter total allowable tons under all PALs in the permit -
(tons/year) Fee fee, including max fee, will calculate automatically.

PAL: separate fee per PAL pollutant. $63 per ton of allowable emissions
Maximum Combined fee for all PAL pollutants not to exceed $63,500

$0 Total Applicable Fee pg. 2




OAQ Permits Branch Invoice Worksheet

Instructions: Permit Reviewers will fill out yellow-highlighted cells (as necessary). Permit Reviewers will change the bottom worksheet tab
color to yellow to indicate the permit billing worksheet that was filled out. PASS staff will fill out the green-highlighted cells (as necessary).

Source Name: Republic Services of Indiana LP dba National Serv- TEMPO Al: 15264

Permit #: 003-47946-00257

CST #:

Credit for permit fees: $ Credit Received Date:

Note: IDEM'’s accounting office requires that fee bills or refunds, be sent to the accounts Department at the billing address listed on
application. If a courtesy copy is needed, please indicate at the bottom of this page.

Permit Reviewer please indicate applicable fees on page #2. Total will carry over to this page.

Total Due: $ $0
Total Credit: $ $0
Total Permitting Fees Applicable: $ $0
Total Refund Due: $

Reason for Refund:

Adjustments to Applicable Fees: $

Explanation of adjustments:

A courtesy copy of the billing has been requested by the applicant, please send to:

Name/Title:

Address:

Permit Reviewer: Tori Tamburrino Date: 19-Jun-24
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